
   

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Wednesday, April 3, 2024 

AGENDA 
 

6:30 PM  

LOCATION 
 

West Branch 
1125 University Avenue 

Commission Members: 
Amy Roth, President; Sophie Hahn, Vice President; Tanir Ami; Beverly Greene, John Selawsky  

To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
BOLT@berkeleyca.gov with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 150 word 
limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record. 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member of 
the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Eve Franklin, 
Administrative Secretary, (510) 981-6102. The Board of Library Trustees may take action related to any subject 
listed on the agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the President may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

C. Public Comment 
Speakers are allowed 3 minutes each for up to 10 speakers; if more than 10 individuals have filled out and 
submitted cards to speak, the time for all speakers will be reduced to 2 minutes per person and if more than 
20 individuals have submitted speaker’s cards, the time per person will be reduced to one minute each, for a 
maximum of one hour of public comment. 

D. Comments from Library Unions 
For regular meetings of the BOLT, representatives from the three unions representing Library employees may 
address BOLT, with a total time limit of 15 minutes. If all three (3) unions have representatives present and wish 
to speak, each union shall receive 5 minutes to address BOLT. If only two (2) unions have representatives 
present and wishing to speak, each union shall receive 7.5 minutes to address BOLT, for a total of 15 minutes. If 
only one (1) union has representatives present and wishing to speak, that union shall receive 15 minutes to 
address BOLT. The Secretary shall, at the start of the Comment from Library Union item, ask union 
representatives who wish to speak to identify themselves and which union they represent. The Secretary shall 
then determine the appropriate allocation of speaking time according to the rules stated herein. 

i. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) 
ii. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) 
iii. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 

E. Comments from Board of Library Trustees 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the Consent 
Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Minutes of March 6, 2024 Regular Meeting  
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution to approve the minutes of the March 6, 2024 Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Library Trustees. 

III. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services and Nneka Gallaread, Fiscal and Adminsitrative Services Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to approve the Budgets for FY 2025 and FY 2026 of revenue of 
$25,810,174 & $26,319,469, respectively, and expenditures of $30,150,330 and $30,584,084, respectively, as 
presented. 

B. Report on Community Survey and Recommended Action  
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: The Board of Library Trustees adopt a resolution to refer to Council a request for inclusion 
on the November 2024 ballot a measure levying a new, limited tax in order to maintain current levels of Library 

mailto:BOLT@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:BOLT@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:BOLT@berkeleyca.gov


Board of Library Trustees - Regular Meeting Wednesday, April 3, 2024 Page 2 

services, building maintenance, collections and staffing. 

The proposed rate is 6¢ per square foot of residential building space and 9¢ of commercial building space, until 
ended by voters or after 12 years, with annual adjustments, and exempting very low-income homeowners.. 

IV. INFORMATION REPORTS
All items for discussion only and no final action. 

A. Monthly Library Director’s Report – Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services

V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Board of Library Trustees may 
schedule these items to the agenda of a future meeting. 

A. Discussion of items to be added to future agendas

VI. ADJOURNMENT

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member of 
the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Tess Mayer, 510-981-
6195, tmayer@berkeleyca.gov. 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the 
City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: E-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required but, if included in any communication to a City board, 
commission, or committee, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any 
other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person 
to the secretary of the relevant board, commission, or committee. If you do not want your contact information 
included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the 
secretary to the relevant board, commission, or committee for further information. 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the commission regarding any item on this agenda will be 
made available for public inspection at the Berkeley Public Library Administration Office located at 2090 Kittredge 
Street - 3rd Floor Admin Wing, Berkeley, CA 94704. 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair-accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact 
the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days 
before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular/special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees was posted at 
the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. 
Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street as well as on the Berkeley Public Library’s 
website, on March 28, 2024. 

//s//

Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Communications: 
3/23/2024 Stone Thiel How the Tiananmen Massacre Changed China 

3/26/2024 Publisher 

mailto:tmayer@berkeleyca.gov


 

2024 03 06 BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes draft v1  Page 1 

II Consent Calendar 
Item A 

 

MINUTES 
Berkeley Public Library - Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, March 6, 2024 6:30 PM 
 

Board of Library Trustees: 
Amy Roth, President Tanir Ami 
Sophie Hahn, Vice President Beverly Greene 
 John Selawsky 

 

 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A copy of the agenda packet can be found at http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees 

A. Call to order:  6:35 pm 

Present: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn and Roth. 

Absent: Trustee Selawsky. 

Also Present: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services; Henry Bankhead, Deputy Director; Alicia 
Abramson, Manager, Library Information Technology; Amanda Myers, Library 
Services Manager; Dan Beringhele, Supervising Librarian, North Branch; Eve 
Franklin, Administrative Secretary. 

B. Ceremonial Matters. 

1. Trustee Hahn – Thank you to the Berkeley Library Foundation for another absolutely spectacular 
Authors Dinner. 

C. Public Comments: 1 speakers 

D. Comments from Library Unions: 

2. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Community Services and PTRLA Units) – 0 speakers 
3. SEIU, LOCAL 1021 (Maintenance and Clerical Units) – 0 speakers 
4. Public Employees Union, LOCAL 1 – 0 speakers   

E. Comments from Board of Library Trustees 

1. Trustee Roth – Thank you to the Berkeley Public Library Foundation. The Authors Dinner was a 
wonderful event. The Library looked great.  

2. Trustee Ami – It was a fantastic event; it was my first time attending. Everything was spectacular, we 
had a wonderful time. 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR  
Action: M/S/C Trustee Ami/ Trustee Hahn to adopt resolution #R24-068 to approve the consent calendar 
as presented. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn, and Roth. Noes: None. Absent: Trustee Selawsky. Abstentions: 
None. 

A. Approve Minutes of the February 7, 2024 Regular Meeting 
From: Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to approve the minutes of the February 7, 2024 Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Library Trustees as presented with minor corrections.   
Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: M/S/C Trustee Ami / Trustee Hahn to adopt resolution #R24-069 to approve the minutes of 
February 7, 2024. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn, and Roth. Noes: None. Absent: Trustee Selawsky. Abstentions: 
None. 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about/board-library-trustees


 

2024 03 06 BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes draft v1  Page 2 

B. Fiscal Year 2024 Purchase Authorization in Excess of Director of Library Services’ Granted 
Authority (Revised Vendor List) 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to enter into fiscal 
year 2024 purchase agreements and approve payments to specified vendors for services encompassing 
utility, telephone and intranet/internet services, library materials, state taxes, professional services, and 
office supplies that may exceed the director’s delegated spending authority of $50,000 for services and 
$100,000 for goods, materials, and equipment. 
Financial Implications: see report. 
Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: M/S/C Trustee Ami / Trustee Hahn to adopt resolution #R24-070 authorizing the Director of 
Library Services to enter into fiscal year 2024 purchase agreements and approve payments to specified 
vendors for services encompassing utility, telephone and intranet/internet services, library materials, state 
taxes, professional services, and office supplies that may exceed the director’s delegated spending 
authority of $50,000 for services and $100,000 for goods, materials, and equipment. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn, and Roth. Noes: None. Absent: Trustee Selawsky. Abstentions: 
None. 

III. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Report on recruitment process to fill vacancy on Board of Library Trustees that will be created by 
the end of Trustee Selawsky’s term effective May 16, 2024.  The President of the Board of Library 
Trustees will appoint an ad hoc trustee nominating sub-committee to initiate the process. 
From: Tess Mayer 
Recommendation: With the end of Trustee Selawsky’s term occurring in mid-May, it is time to initiate the 
process to fill this vacancy. Under the revised Board of Library Trustees Vacancies Policy, the President of 
BOLT will appoint an ad hoc trustee nominating sub-committee to initiate the process. The Board will 
review supporting documents and publicity plan. 
Financial Implications: none. 
Contact: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: President Roth appointed Trustee Greene to an Ad Hoc Trustee Nominating Sub-Committee to 
serve with the President and Secretary (Mayer). 

IV. INFORMATION CALENDAR 

A. Equity, Diversity, Inclusion Manager Report 
From: Dia Penning 
Action: Received 

B. Monthly Library Director’s Report 
From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
Action: Received 

V. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next regular meeting will be held April 3, 2024. 
1. Budget 
2. Land Acknowledgement Committee Report 
3. Share Hub 
4. Presentation to Council 
5. Enumerate relationship between Library and COB 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

M/S/C Trustee Ami / Trustee Greene to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: Ayes: Trustees Ami, Greene, Hahn, and Roth. Noes: None. Absent: Trustee Selawsky. Abstentions: None. 
Adjourned at 8:09 PM. 
This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of March 
6, 2024 as approved by the Board of Library Trustees. 
//s// ___________________________________________  

Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, acting as secretary to BOLT 



 

2024 03 06 BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes draft v1  Page 3 

 
Attachments:  

1. Equity, Diversity, Inclusion Presentation 





II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 1 of 6



II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 2 of 6



II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 3 of 6



II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 4 of 6



II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 5 of 6



II Consent Calendar 
Item A, Attachment 1

Page 6 of 6



 

 

III Action Calendar 
Item A 

 ACTION CALENDAR 
 April 3, 2024 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

Subject: Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds 

RECOMMENDATION 
Adopt a Resolution to approve the Budgets for FY 2025 and FY 2026 of revenue of $25,810,174 & 
$26,319,469, respectively, and expenditures of $30,150,330 and $30,584,084, respectively, as presented. 

INTRODUCTION  
The proposed FY 2025-26 Budget presented herein incorporates changes to the revenue and expenditure 
base budgets for all Library Fund groups. 

The proposed Budget for all Library Funds for FY 2025 and 26 projects revenue of $25,810,174 and 
$26,319,469; respectively and expenditures of $30,150,330 and $30,584,084.  The following table reflects 
the dollar values by Fund grouping. 

Proposed Budget 

 FY 2025 FY 2026 
Fund Revenue Expense Revenue Expense 

Library Tax (101) $25,535,754 $ 27,732,804 $26,046,049 $ 28,166,558 
Library Capital Projects (102) $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 
Grants (103) $68,420 $67,526 $68,420 $67,526 
Friends and Gifts (104) $105,000 $150,000 $105,000 $150,000 
BPL Foundation (105) $100,000 $200,000 $100,000 $200,000 
Berkeley Public Library  $25,810,174 $30,150,330 $26,319,469 $30,584,084 

 

The Board of Library Trustees established the FY25 and FY 26 Budget Priorities as adopted by Resolution No. 
24-068 on February 7, 2024: 

Budget Priorities for FY 2025 and FY 2026: 
1. Ensure equitable access to high quality collections, programs, facilities, technology, and helpful staff. 
2. Foster community connections and increase public awareness. 
3. Enhance the quality of experience for all Library employees and take steps to continually improve our 

ability to meet our mission and vision. 
4. Plan for the sustainability of the Library’s funding base, physical infrastructure, and services. 

The priorities seek to achieve the optimum utilization of public and library resources throughout the budget 
period and to ensure proposed budget changes are aligned with the board’s immediate and long-term 
objectives and goals. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 2 
 
The proposed revenue and expenditure budgets for all funding sources along with the recommendations 
contained herein present a budget for fiscal years 2025 and 2026. 

Library Tax Fund 

The Library Tax Fund is projected to achieve revenues of $25,536,754 and $26,046,049 in FY 2025 & FY 2026, 
respectively; with expenditures of $27,732,804 and $28,166,558. The amount in tax revenues are 
systematically updated as a part of the budget process based on the City’s applied default rate. This change 
is in comparison to the previous budget year. Actuals are typically different to account for the varying 
property transactions and the City-wide exercise of updating rates based on CPI or PIG from the April-April 
period. The CPI and PIG comes out well into the budget process which doesn’t allow for budget reports to 
updated. The actual revenue collected is reflective of the changes. For this reason, the current budgeted 
revenue is $228,438 less than Mid-Year FY 2024 projection. 

Planned expenditure budgets total $27,732,804 and $28,166,558 for FY2025 and 26, respectively. Excluding 
estimated City pass-through expenses for fiscal years 2025 and 26 are $27,695,954 and $28,128,709. 

Library Tax Rate 

The City of Berkeley imposes a citywide special tax (referred to as the Library Relief Act of 1980) on all 
residential and commercial property in Berkeley based on square footage. This voter-approved tax is 
intended to provide a stable revenue source to ensure the provision of library services and may be adjusted 
annually based on the recommendation of the Director of Library Services to the Board of Library Trustees 
that the City Council adjust the tax rates (residential and commercial) by either the consumer price index in 
the immediate San Francisco Bay Area or the per capita personal income growth factor in California.  The CA 
Personal Income Growth factor is released in late April and the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price Index 
released in mid-May. The Library employs the proceeds of the library tax to maintain and enhance the 
Library’s physical plant and infrastructure, purchase library materials, and provide public services and 
programming. The budget as presented in this report applies the City’s default rate of 4.7%. 

Personnel 

Personnel expenses are projected at $21,025,699 and $21,641,503; equal to 75.8% and 76.8% of Fund 
expenditures for FY2025 and 26, respectively. 

On January 11, 2024, through Resolution No. R24-061, the Board of Library Trustees approved the Library’s 
FY 2025 and 2026 personnel budgets.   

In summary, this incorporated the following changes to the Library’s personnel budget:   

Approved expansion of 14.45 FTE from an authorized FY 2024 level of 118.225 FTE to 132.675 FTE for 
FY2025 and 26.  Authorized headcount increased by two to 147 from 145.   

Breakdown by Position Type  

Type FTE Headcount 
 FY25/26 +/- FY24 FY25/26 +/- FY24 

Career   132.675      14.450    118.225    147.000        3.000    144.000  
Non-Career 0.375  - 0.375  1.000  - * 1.000  
Total 133.050 14.450  118.600 147.000 3.000 145.000 

*Addition of EDI Program Manager position in FY 24 

Part-time hours conversion:  expanded hours of 53 part-time positions from 20/week or .5 FTE to 30/week or .75 
FTE.  This includes 100% coverage of staff members’ medical insurance benefits.  This change affects 53 part-time 
positions.  Given that part-time positions already include 75%-funded medical benefits packages, the difference in 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 3 
 
cost of this change reflects the additional 25% coverage as well as the rate of pay for the 10 additional hours.  The 
total estimated cost of this change was approximately $1,665,685.  

Additional approved position changes included the addition of a full-time Supervising Librarian (1.0 FTE) as well as 
the additional of a Communications Specialist position (1.0 FTE) to support the ever-expanding needs associated 
with both external and internal communications at the Library.  The addition of these positions represents 
$381,331.00 combined including benefits packages.   

For additional background information regarding these changes, please see the Board packet dated January 11, 
2024.   

In addition to the above changes which have already been approved, the Library staff recommends the following 
changes also be incorporated into the final personnel budgets for FY 2025 and 2026: 

1. Conversion of a vacant Supervising Library Assistant position in the Circulation Division to a Central 
Library Circulation Supervisor position   

This involves the reintroduction of a position that the Library used to have but eliminated in 2005 during the FY 
2006-07 Budget development process as part of proposed balancing measures at that time.  Circulation Services is 
the Library’s largest division and is based at the Central Library.  There have been a number of significant concerns 
and projects associated with Circulation Services that will benefit from additional leadership support at the Central 
Library.  One such example is the need for establishment of clear and transparent training goals for entry level 
positions such as the Library Aide position, so that staff can prepare for advancement within the system.  This will 
enable the Circulation Manager to have more of a system-wide focus, as the position was originally intended.   

The total cost of this change is marginal, as the cost of a Circulation Supervisor mid-range on the pay scale is close to 
what had originally been previously budgeted for the Supervising Library Assistant:   

Total Cost Estimate:   approximately $3,500 

 

2. Addition of a Supervising Librarian position for the Tool Lending Library 

The Tool Lending Library is housed in the same location at the Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch.  In the past, the Tool 
Lending operation has been supervised by the Supervising Librarian that provides leadership of the THP South 
Branch.  Although the supervisory span of the two service sites is still within acceptable parameters for the 
Supervising Librarian position (8 positions), the complexity of the services offered at both locations and the different 
needs and approaches to staffing introduce a greater level of complexity.  As the Library prepares to do a more in-
depth analysis of the potential expansion of tool lending, on the heels of a strategic planning process which 
referenced this need by both the public as well as staff, ensuring adequate leadership support of this service is a 
necessary step to take.  Furthermore, if there is an expansion of hours of this service, additional staffing support will 
be needed, and adding a Supervising Librarian will provide both public service as well as supervisory support.   

Total Cost Estimate: $201,308 

 

3. Addition of a Communications Program Manager (Program Manager II), replacement of Associate 
Management Analyst position 

In Administration, the Library seeks to add a Program Manager II position dedicated to leadership of communication 
services to be filled through competitive process.  If filled, the new position would replace the existing occupied 
Associate Management Analyst position.  The corresponding change in scope of this position acknowledges the 
ongoing importance of internal and external communications for the Library as emphasized by the recent strategic 
planning process, and underscores the significance and criticality expressed by staff to ensuring the transparency 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 4 
 
and timeliness of Library communications.  This change also provides for increased management capacity given the 
addition of a Communications Specialist position.    

Total Cost Estimate: $14,220 

California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) retirement plan contributions continue as a significant 
share of staffing costs. The City’s participation in the agency’s Miscellaneous Employee Plan – to which all career 
Library staff are included – is currently funded (the ratio of plan assets to accrued liabilities) at 70% based on 
actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2019; plan costs are expected to continue to increase over the long-term as 
CalPERs seeks to achieve 100% funding within a 30-year timeframe. The base budget, for FY25 & 26, currently 
projects payment of $5,329,499 and $5,420,098, an increase of $2,018,135, or 60.9%, over the FY 2024 budget. 

The budget estimates fiscal year 2025 fringe benefit costs, which include major staffing expenditures: CalPERS 
retirement (referred to in preceding paragraph), and medical and dental insurance costs, to increase $2,937,353 
above the FY 2024 budget. Fringe benefit expense items are considered nondiscretionary, as for the most part they 
can only be reduced by a direct decrease in FTE count.   

As occurs during each budget development exercise, ending budgeted labor expenses within the Library Tax Fund 
are always subject to change based on updated labor cost calculations once staffing headcount changes are 
entered and labor negotiations take place; consequently, staffing costs may vary slightly in contrast to what is 
presented in this report. 

  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 5 
 
Non-Personnel 

At $6,707,105 for FY25 and $6,526,055 for FY26, non-personnel costs constitute 24.18% and 23.17%, 
respectively, of total Fund expenditures. Principal items and programs in the FY 2025-26 budgets include: 

• Central Library Air Conditioning Units Replacement: $1,566,000  

• Collection budget enhancements: $200,000 (additional over previous year) 

• Redesign of Storyroom:  $100,000 

• Anticipated investments in technology infrastructure, including a comprehensive technology 
planning process:  $200,000 

• Ongoing Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion training: $50,000 

• Janitorial Services: $430,000 

• Reserve: $1,548,136 

In FY 2025, it’s anticipated that the Library will be undertaking replacement of both roof-top air conditioning 
units at the Central Library.  Other projects have been identified that carry budgetary implications, including 
a more comprehensive assessment and repair of the Central Library and North Branch’s elevators, an 
updating of the Central Library’s a/c ducting, as well as an audit of the Library’s lighting systems with a goal 
toward replacing the lighting with more energy efficient and environmentally-friendly products.  This is 
already occurring on an incremental basis.  

The Library will continue to fund its budget for collections at higher than the increased level approved for 
the FY 24 budget.  In 2024, the Collection budget was increased by $200,000 over the previous year.  In 
2025, there will be an additional $200,000 increase in funding, to provide for refreshed collections, and to 
meet the heightened demand for electronic resources that continues to rise.  The Collections team is also 
working to enhance and refresh world languages collections in response to community needs, with an initial 
focus on an infusion of Spanish and Chinese language materials.     

The contract for the redesign of the 4th floor Storyroom in the Children’s Library will be fulfilled in FY 2025 
now that the plans for the design have been completed by Anderson Brulé Architects, Inc.  This second stage 
of this project will also be undertaken in partnership with the BPL Foundation – the Foundation has 
committed to continue to support some of the expenses associated with the redesign.   

Other large miscellaneous budgetary expenditures include IT projects to develop a Technology Roadmap or 
over-arching technology plan for the Library and to improve meeting room booking and events management 
and registration software; contracted janitorial services for $430,000; and gas and electric utilities at 
$395,000.  Lastly, the Reserve is adjusted upward by $164,548 to reflect approximately 6% of anticipated 
library tax receipts. 

Grants Fund 

The Grants Funds primarily reflects activity related to the BerkeleyREADS literacy program. 

The Library does not receive information prior to the opening of the fiscal year from the California State 
Library regarding likely funding for that particular fiscal year for the California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) 
program which supports BerkeleyREADS.  The CLLS projected award for fiscal year 2024 is $82,104; with 
expenditures projected at $65,000. In late FY 2023, we obtained a new grant called Lunch @ the Library. The 
initial funding was about $30,000 but that amount decreased this grant year to about $11,000.  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 6 
 
Gifts Fund 

The Gifts Fund includes monies received through donations from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, 
and direct receipts from individuals, organizations, trusts, and estates.  

FY 2025 and 26 includes a placeholder amount for estimated annual award receipts of $105,000 from the 
Friends of the Berkeley Public Library and $150,000 for other expenditures.  Expenditures reflect 
appropriations for events and programs supported by the Friends annual award, miscellaneous donations to 
the Library in general and the BerkeleyREADS program specifically, and other Fund balance support as 
directed by the Director of Library Services. 

Foundation Fund 

The Foundation is committed to being an important contributor to public service programs, and interior 
physical plant improvements at all BPL facilities.  Recent and ongoing improvements and equipment funded 
by the Foundation include, Branch Libraries Refresh, creative laptop software, and movable shelving at 
Claremont Branch, to facilitate more flexible programming space. Fiscal year 2025 and 26 includes a 
$100,000 placeholder for revenue and $2000,000 for expenditures. The Foundation has expressed their 
commitment to partner with the Library on redesign phase of the 4th floor Story Room in the Children’s 
Library. 

CURRENT SITUATION 
The Library Tax Fund remains the sole funding source capable of supporting the full range of Berkeley Public 
Library public services.  The Fund generates 99% of total revenues and bears 98% of total expenses.   

In the proposed FY 2025 and 26 budgets, a new capital fund (102) is reflected with an initial investment of 
$5,000,000, transferred from the Library Tax Fund and made possible through temporary excess equity in 
the Library’s tax fund balance.  A capital improvement plan is under development, but preliminary 
assessments demonstrate a need for an estimated $7,300,000 to support physical plant and technology 
projects over the next five years.  If this funding is diverted back to the primary budget in the case of budget 
shortfall to cover baseline expenses, the amount of funding available to address these capital needs will be 
further reduced.       

The Library believes the FY 2025 and 26 proposed budgets contained herein directly addresses each budget 
priority in a balanced approach. The Library remains determined to maintain, enhance, and expand its 
services to all segments of the Berkeley community with innovative programs and partnerships, enhanced 
technology, and safe, healthy, and comfortable modern facilities. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 
No alternative actions are proposed at this time. 

FUTURE ACTION 
On adoption by the Library Board of Trustees the Library will report the final budget to the City Manager’s 
Office for inclusion into the consolidated budget for the City.   

CONTACT PERSON 
Nneka Gallaread, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager, Library Administration, 510-981-6118 

  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Proposed Budget FY 2025-26 – All Library Funds Page 7 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. Proposed FY 2025 and 26 Revenue Budgets by Fund 
3. Proposed FY 2025 and 26 Expenditure Budgets by Fund 
4. Library Tax Fund (101) 5-Year Fund Analysis  
5. Capital Project Fund (102) 5-Year Fund Analysis 
6. Grants Fund (103) 5-Year Fund Analysis 
7. Friends & Gifts Fund (104) 5-Year Fund Analysis 
8. Foundation Fund (105) 5-Year Analysis 
9. Proposed FY 2025 and 26 Position FTE Summary by Classification 
10. Estimated Capital Project Expenses – Facilities and Technology  

 

 
 





Attachment #1 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION NO: 24-___ 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

APPROVE THE PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGETS FOR FY 2025 AND FY 2026 OF $25,810,174/$26,319,469 
AND THE PROPOSED EXPENDITURE BUDGETS FOR FY 2025 AND FY 2026 OF $30,150,330/$30,584,084 
 
WHEREAS, on February 7, 2024, the Board of Library Trustees established the FY25 and FY 26 Budget 
Priorities as adopted by Resolution No. 24-068; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Library Services and the Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager submitted for 
approval the personnel budgets for FY 2025 and 2026; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees adopted the FY 2025 and 2026 personnel budget on January 11, 
2024 by Resolution No. R24-061; and 

WHEREAS, there are additional personnel changes recommended as well as non-personnel budgets that 
have yet to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Library Services, and the Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager have 
submitted comprehensive budgets for FY 2025 and FY2026 to the Board of Library Trustees for their 
approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees must adopt the FY 2025 and FY 2026 budgets no later than June 24, 
2024; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve the 
Budgets for FY 2025 and FY 2026 of revenue of $25,810,174 & $26,319,469, respectively, and expenditures 
of $30,150,330 and $30,584,084, respectively, as presented.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on May 1, 2024 
by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS:  
  _______________________________________________  
 Amy Roth, President 
 
  _______________________________________________  
 Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 
 Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustee 
 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org




   
Attachment 2 

   PROPOSED FY 2025 REVENUE BUDGETS BY FUND 
 

 
                 *Revenue shows as a negative in ERMA  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
Attachment 2 (cont) 

 
   PROPOSED FY 2026 REVENUE BUDGETS BY FUND 

 

 
  *Revenue shows as a negative in ERMA



   
Attachment 3 

 

PROPOSED FY 2025 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 1 of 3) 
 

 



   
Attachment 3 (cont) 

 

PROPOSED FY 2025 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 2 of 3) 
 

 
 



   
Attachment 3 (cont) 

 

PROPOSED FY 2025 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 3 of 3) 
 

 
  



   
Attachment 3 (cont) 

 

 

PROPOSED FY 2026 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 1 of 3) 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



   
Attachment 3 (cont) 

 

 

PROPOSED FY 2026 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 2 of 3) 

 



   
Attachment 3 (cont) 

 

PROPOSED FY 2026 EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY FUND (page 3 of3) 

 

 



   
Attachment 4 

 

 

LIBRARY TAX FUND (101) 5-YEAR FUND ANALYSIS 

 





   
Attachment 5 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (102) 5-YEAR FUND ANALYSIS  

 

  





   
Attachment 6 

 
 

GRANTS FUND (103) 5-YEAR FUND ANALYSIS  

 
 





   
Attachment 7 

 

 

FRIENDS & GIFTS FUND (104) 5-YEAR FUND ANALYSIS  

  

 





   
Attachment 8 

 

 

FOUNDATION FUND (105) 5-YEAR FUND ANALYSIS  

  

 





   
Attachment 9 

 

` 

Proposed FY 2025 Staffing Positions by Division 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



   
Attachment 9 (con’t) 

 

 

Proposed FY 2026 Staffing Positions by Divisionp 

 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY
FACILITIES CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Site System/Equipment Description Average Lifespan 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Total Comments
Central Air Conditioning All units; both buildings 20 Yrs 1,566,000       
Central Air Conditioning 2 Split Units-Server Room 15 Yrs 25,000.00       
Central Appliances Stove 15 Yrs 1,500.00         
Central Appliances Refrigerator (2) 15 Yrs 24,000.00       
Central Appliances Dishwasher 15 Yrs 800.00            
Central Electrical Panels + Distribution 25 Yrs 26,000.00       
Central Electrical Wired Detectors + Alarm 20 Yrs 45,000.00        2026 -Approx. 211 devices @ $200 ea installed
Central Fire Alarm Panel Simplex-Grinnel 15-20 Yrs 50,000.00       
Central Elevator Administration 25 Yrs 125,000.00     
Central Elevator East-side 25 Yrs 150,000.00     
Central Elevator Link Corridor 25 Yrs 150,000.00     
Central Elevator West-side 25 Yrs 150,000.00     
Central Flooring Linoleum 30-40 Yrs Pending 2032
Central Flooring Rolled Carpet 3rd Floor 10-15 Yrs 20,000.00       
Central Flooring Meeting Room carpet 8 Yrs 20,000.00       
Central Heating System Boiler-Hot Water, 2.8M BTU 25-35 Yrs 200,000.00     
Central Painting - Exterior (all) Kittredge 10-15 Yrs 150,000.00     
Central Painting - Interior Bancroft 5-7 Yrs 30,000.00       depends on sq footage painted
Central Painting - Interior Kittredge 5-7 Yrs 50,000.00       depends on sq footage painted
Central Plumbing Pipes, Pump, etc 20 Yrs
Central Plumbing Storm System 25 Yrs 20,000.00       
Central Roofing Modified Bitumen Flat Roof 15-25 Yrs 500,000.00     
Central Temperature Control Syserco Bldg Mgmt System Softw 7 Yrs 7200 (2010)
Central Temperature Control Syserco Bldg Mgmt System Hard 7-15 Yrs 16500 (2010)
Central Ventilation System Exhaust Fans 15-20 Yrs 50,000.00       
Central Emergency Generator Emergency Power (minimal leve 20 Yrs 25,000.00       
Claremont Air Conditioning Mitsubishi "City-Multi" 20 Yrs 106,000.00     
Claremont Air Conditioning Liebert 15 Yrs 29,000.00       
Claremont Appliances Stove 15 Yrs 1,500.00         
Claremont Appliances Refrigerator 15 Yrs 1,500.00         
Claremont Fences Wood 15 Yrs 6,000.00         
Claremont Flooring Carpet Tiles 8 Yrs 25,000.00       
Claremont Heating System Electric Duct Heaters 15 Yrs 20,000.00       
Claremont Painting - Exterior Stucco and Wood Trim 10-15 Yrs 45,000.00       
Claremont Painting - Interior 5-7 Yrs
Claremont Roofing Flat 15 Yrs 60,000.00       
Claremont Roofing Sloped 20 Yrs 20,000.00       
Claremont Ceiling (interior) Repair ceiling water damage n/a 50,000.00       
Claremont Lighting Control Automated Programmable Cont 10 Yrs 15,000.00       
Claremont Temperature Control Southland EMS Energy Managem  10 Yrs 15,000.00       
Claremont Ventilation System Supply and Return Fans 15 Yrs 15,000.00       
North Appliances Refrigerator 15 Yrs 1,500.00         
North Flooring Carpet Tiles 8 Yrs 20,000.00       
North Heating System Boiler 20 Yrs 2032:  35,000.00
North Heating System Valves, Pipin Radiant Floor, Radiators 35 years
North Painting - Exterior 10-15 Yrs 55,000.00       
North Painting - Interior 5-7 Yrs 25,000.00       
North Roofing Flat 15 Yrs 20,000.00       
North Roofing Sloped Clay Tile 75 Yrs
North Lighting Control Automated Programmable Cont 10 Yrs 15,000.00       
North Temperature Control Johnson Controls Energy Mangm  10 Yrs 15,000.00       
North Ventilation System Exhaust Fans 15 Yrs 10,000.00       
West Solar Solar Drain Back Tank n/a 30,000.00       
West Solar panels Cracked/damaged panels n/a 10,000.00       
South Solar panels Cracked/damaged panels n/a 10,000.00       
South Air Conditioning Install two new units n/a 50,000.00       
All Lighting Replace all with LED ongoing 200,000.00     
Total 1,726,000.00 30,000.00       575,000.00     770,000.00     46,300.00       556,000.00     275,500.00     3,978,800.00 



Estimated Capital Project Expenses – Facilities and Technology Attachment 10

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY
TECHNOLOGY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Site System/Equipment Description
 Average 
Lifespan 2024

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Total Comments

n/a

 Web Redesign  New software platform 

5

      80,000.00       40,000.00       40,000.00       40,000.00       40,000.00       40,000.00 

Cost could potentially be lower by hiring a web design and 
hosting company to redo the website, i.e. a company that is not 
an integrator of multiple products such as website and online 
catalog discovery layers.

n/a  Discovery Layer  New software platform 5     181,762.00     161,762.00     161,762.00     177,938.20     177,938.20 

n/a

 ILS (integrated library 
system) 

10

    250,000.00     125,000.00     125,000.00 
       

$125,000.00 
    135,500.00 

2026-2029 Years 1 – 4 of new contract. Year 1 includes 
implementation fee plus software maintenance. Years 2-4 
Software maintenance. Year 5, 2030,  system maintenance 
increased by 10% over original contracted price after contract is 
amended.

n/a

 MS Office 365 including 
Sharepoint and Teams 

 Intranet and communication 
software 

      39,496.50       39,496.50       39,496.50       39,496.50       39,496.50       39,496.50 

n/a

 Comunico  
 Events, calendar, content 
mgmt software 

10

      36,000.00       23,920.00       23,920.00       25,116.00       25,116.00       25,116.00       26,371.80 
2024-2026 are current contracted price. 2027-2029 assumes a 5% 
increase in cost and 2030 assumes an additional 5% increase in 
cost. 2030 assumes a 5% increase over 2027-2029.

n/a
 Technology Roadmap 

 Project Management around 
technology needs assessment 100,000.00    

All 
 Meeting room technology 
update 10

 $150,000.00 - 
$200,000 

      80,000.00       80,000.00       80,000.00       80,000.00 
2026 is estimated cost for CMR update. 2027-2030 is estimated 
cost for one Branch meeting room annually.

All 

 Digital Signage 
 updated equipment (plus 
installation) 

7

        7,000.00       20,000.00       10,500.00                   -                     -                     -                     -   

2024 currently planned upgrades. 2025 newly requested Central 
Teen Room recessed and networked screen with av control box 
installed and new screen for Sorting Room. 2026 replace 
remaining Branch screens (W, THPS & C).

n/a

 Firewall replacement 

6

                  -                     -       125,000.00                   -                     -                     -       125,000.00 

Based on past pricing. Our current firewall contract was for an 
initial 3 year term and we amended it to continue support for the 
same firewall which has one more year on it. We would probably 
upgrade the firewall the next go-round and when we amend in 3 
years after that, extend support for that same device

All 

 Network upgrade                   -                     -       200,000.00       50,000.00       50,000.00       50,000.00       50,000.00 

Consists of $150,000 equipment upgrade in 2026 and $50k annual 
telecom fees for CENIC 100GB Network 2026-2030. This is a 
guesstimate for the telecom fees, waiting to hear back from CENIC 
on those costs. Also, State of California periodically offers grant to 
offset the cost of new equipment so the cost of new equipment 
necessary could go down if they offer that when we plan to 
upgrade.

Total 143,000.00    163,416.50    950,678.50    521,374.50    521,374.50    412,550.70    594,306.50    3,306,701.20   



 

III Action Calendar 
Item B    

 ACTION CALENDAR 
 April 3, 2024 

 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-[XXXX] ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-[XXXX] 
E-Mail: [xxxxx@berkeleyca.gov]  

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Report on Community Survey and Recommended Action 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Board of Library Trustees adopt a resolution to refer to Council a request for 
inclusion on the November 2024 ballot a measure levying a new, limited tax in order to 
maintain current levels of Library services, building maintenance, collections and 
staffing.  

The proposed rate is 6¢ per square foot of residential building space and 9¢ of 
commercial building space, until ended by voters or after 12 years, with annual 
adjustments, and exempting very low-income homeowners.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
The Berkeley Public Library is anticipating a structural deficit in the very near future, 
when expenses will outpace revenue.  In order to sustain current hours and staffing 
levels, including the staffing required for the reintroduction of Sunday hours, the Library 
must be proactive and fiscally responsible by identifying a new revenue source.   

If revenue does not increase, the Library will need to impose cost saving measures that 
will impact the open hours and staffing levels, as the Library’s personnel budget 
represents over 70% of the Library’s total expenditures.  

Also, the Library would have to prioritize only select deferred maintenance facilities and 
technology projects for implementation that most impact health and safety. Since the 
onset of the pandemic, a number of significant deferred maintenance projects have 
been identified for the Library’s physical plant as well as technological infrastructure 
needs.  One such example includes a full-scale replacement of the Central Library’s 
HVAC system, which will cost over $1.5M.  Another example comes out of the recent 
strategic planning process in which the staff and community identified the need for a 
new website.  Addressing technological needs will require additional funding, which 
could be provided by the proposed limited tax increase.  

The estimated $5.6M in annual revenue generated by this proposed tax would maintain 
the Library’s hours, address the immediate infrastructure and technological needs, and 
allow for the current level of Library services.   

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 



Report on Community Survey and Recommended Action]   

Page 2 

The Library contracted Godbe Research to conduct a community survey of Berkeley 
residents in March 2024.  The findings illustrate a high level of satisfaction with Library 
services as well as a strong level of support in the Berkeley community for a limited 
additional tax that would sustain library services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Berkeley applies a citywide special tax (referred to as the Library Relief Act 
of 1980) on all residential and commercial property in Berkeley based on square 
footage.  The tax became permanent in 1988 through an amendment. 

This Library Tax Fund is the primary funding source supporting the full range of 
Berkeley Public Library public services.  The Fund generates 99% of total revenues and 
bears 98% of total expenses.  This voter-approved tax is intended to provide a stable 
revenue source to ensure the provision of library services and may be adjusted annually 
based on the recommendation of the Director of Library Services to the Board of Library 
Trustees that the City Council adjust the tax rates (residential and commercial) by either 
the consumer price index in the immediate San Francisco Bay Area or the per capita 
personal income growth factor in California. The Library employs the proceeds of the 
library tax to maintain and enhance the Library’s physical plant and infrastructure, 
purchase library materials, and provide public services.   

In recent years, the revenue increase afforded by the annual tax rate adjustment has 
not kept place with rising costs associated with increased personnel and collection 
material expenses and the costs of operating five locations, including a historic, large 
Central Library and two historic branch buildings.   

Although the Berkeley Public Library has had previous bond measures intended to fund 
the retrofit and expansion of the Central Library in 1996 and Branch renovations in 2000 
and 2008, it has never had a change to this base tax, apart from the annual adjustment 
as described above.   

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS 
Some of the deferred maintenance projects include ensuring that the systems and 
equipment used in each of the Library’s five locations optimize environmental 
sustainability and reduce climate impacts.  For example, Library staff is currently 
undertaking a project to replace all lighting fixtures in the libraries with LED and/or more 
sustainable kinds of bulbs and fixtures.  Additionally, given the increasing impact of 
climate change, many have observed that the libraries should have some additional 
features that would allow them to serve as actual cooling centers and/or locations where 
people could access clean air in the event of extended wildfire seasons.    

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 
 
 
 



 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S. 
 

Refer to Council a request for inclusion of a ballot measure calling for Library Tax on the 
November 2024 ballot 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library is anticipating a structural deficit in the near 
future; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library will need to employ cost-saving measures in order to remain 
financially solvent if additional revenue is not identified; and 
 
WHEREAS, these cost-saving measures could impact current hours, staffing levels, and 
the ability to complete identified deferred maintenance and capital improvement 
projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library contracted Godbe Research to conduct a community survey in 
Berkeley; and  
 
WHEREAS, the survey result reflected a favorable assessment of Library services as 
well as a strong level of support in the Berkeley community for a limited additional tax 
that would support the sustainability of library services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees is responsible for developing budgetary 
priorities and recommends an annual budget for the operation and maintenance of the 
library; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees provides leadership, governance and 
oversight of the Library. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees adopt a 
resolution to refer to Council a request for inclusion of a ballot measure calling for 
limited increase in Library Tax on the November 2024 ballot.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board recommend to the Council that the ballot 
language used be the language tested by Godbe Research, incorporating proposed 
changes as described.  
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting 
held on April 3, 2024 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSENT:  

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


Report on Community Survey and Recommended Action]   

Page 4 

ABSTENTIONS:  
  _____________________________________  
 Amy Roth, Chairperson 
 
  _____________________________________  
 Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Serving as Secretary of the Board of Library 
Trustees 

 
  
 



 

 

IV Information Calendar 
    Item A 

 INFORMATION REPORTS 
 April 3, 2024 

 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services 

Subject: Director’s Report 

 
Vacancies:  

Position Location FTE 
Library Aide Circulation Services 0.75 
Library Aide Circulation Services 0.75 
Library Aide Circulation Services 0.75 
Library Aide Circulation Services 0.75  
Supervising Librarian Reference 1 
Supervising Librarian (new position) Art & Music 1 
Library Aide West 0.75 
Library Aide West 0.75 
Library Aide North 0.75 
Supervising Library Assistant Circulation Services 1 
Librarian I Central Support 1 
Senior Librarian Central Support 1 
Communications Specialist  (new) Administration  1 
Administrative Secretary Administration 1 
Library Assistant North 0.75 
 
The Library currently has 14 vacant positions out of 147, with three positions being added over the course of 
this fiscal year or for the next (Equity, Diversity, Inclusion Program Manager, Supervising Librarian, 
Communications Specialist).  Some of these vacancies continue to be the result from staff being promoted 
both internally and externally. 

 

Critical Incident Involving Library Staff  

On the evening of Friday, March 15, a staff member was assaulted by a member of the public.   

At closing, as the staff executed closing procedures, a staff member returned to speak with a patron who 
had not left the second floor just as the building was closing.  The individual picked up and threw two chairs 
across the floor before charging at the library staff person and striking them on the head and face, 
dislodging and damaging their eyeglasses.  Other staff and security stayed with them, made sure they were 
physically safe, and ensured that they got home safely.  While they were not physically harmed, they 
understandably have been impacted by this situation.  

The police responded to the incident later, after the staff member had already left, and filed a report.  In the 
days that followed, the police continued their investigation of and pursued closure of the case.   

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

Members of the Library’s Leadership team were in contact with the impacted staff member on Friday 
evening and throughout the weekend.   

On Saturday morning, a message was sent to all staff, recounting what had occurred and sharing pictures of 
the patron involved.  An in-person briefing was held at the Central Library morning meeting to discuss what 
had happened and what to do if the person were to return.  Director Mayer contacted the BPD Operations 
Manager and the City of Berkeley Safety Officer to inform them of the incident and review the appropriate 
protocol.   

On Monday, members of Administration discussed the incident with the responding officer, and scheduled a 
critical incident debriefing with staff who had been more immediately involved at 11am.  Staff gathered to 
share their experiences and reflect on their observations.  As the CARE (Community Advocacy and 
Relationship Experience) Committee had already recommended, the security guard’s chair was moved to be 
better positioned to observe who was entering the building.  Library staff also communicated needs and 
expectations to the security company.  A No Trespassing/Stay Away order was also filed with the police 
department.  

Members of administration participated in the closing process with staff on Monday and Tuesday evenings, 
as well as the following week, to observe the current practices and gather staff feedback.   

Central Library Services Manager Bill Kolb scheduled an EAP or Employee Assistance Program drop-in 
support session for Wednesday, March 27 open to any staff, as well as a focused conversation on Central’s 
closing procedures for all of the Central Leads—Supervising Library Assistants and Supervising Librarians.  
The group generated very helpful feedback about immediate changes that could be made to make closing 
procedures safer.   

Multiple people, representing different roles within the Library, have pointed to the potential to make 
closing safer overall by a modification to the current practice of having staff scheduled to leave right at 
closing and thus approaching members of the public and asking them to leave prior to the building actually 
being closed.  This is something that the administration will pursue in partnership with labor.   

 

Supportive Crisis Response Mental Health Association of San Francisco 

Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Manager Dia Penning scheduled three sessions of the Supportive Critical 
Response Training offered by the Mental Health Association of San Francisco.  This training is mandatory for 
all public-services positions and recommended for others.  It has been recommended by both Oakland as 
well as San Francisco Public Library.  The training is described as follows:   

Focus: Crisis, distress, and one's response to them, while minimizing the need to involve law enforcement. 

Learn: Compassionate, humane, and effective methods of addressing anger, fear, grief, etc. 

Practice: Effective responses to the crises of community members, staff, or visitors to one's organization. 

 

Programming Update 

Social Services Specialist CJ continues to make new services available to people at the Library, this time 
coordinating with Easy Does It Emergency Services on a wheelchair repair workshop.  On March 26, 
technicians were available at the Central Library to work with individuals to repair their wheelchairs, 
scooters, and other assistive tech for free!   

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org
https://www.easydoesitservices.org/


BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION REPORT 
Director’s Report Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6195 ● Website: www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

 
 
 

CONTACT PERSON 
Tess Mayer, Director of Library Services, Library, 510-981-6195 
 
 
 

file://LIBSTORAGE02/Admin/Admin%20Assistant/BOLT/Templates%20and%20Forms/www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org

	2024 04 03 BOLT Agenda v1
	I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	II. CONSENT CALENDAR
	III. ACTION CALENDAR
	IV. INFORMATION REPORTS
	V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
	VI. ADJOURNMENT

	2024 03 06 BOLT Regular Meeting Minutes draft v1
	2024 03 06 BOLT Regular Minutes Att 1 - EDI Presentation
	2024 04 03 Proposed Budget FY25 26 Report and Resolution Only
	2024 04 03 Proposed Budget FY25 26 attachments only
	Estimated Capital Project Expenses - Facilities & Technology
	Maint Planning
	Technology 

	2024 04 03 Survey Report and Recommendation for Council Referral
	Amy Roth, Chairperson

	2024 04 03 Director's Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADP4676.tmp
	I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	II. CONSENT CALENDAR
	III. ACTION CALENDAR
	IV. INFORMATION REPORTS
	V. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
	VI. ADJOURNMENT

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



